
 
 
 

Questions and Answers No. 1 
Request for Proposal MDM0031023850 

Systems Operations Support RFP 
January 15, 2016 

 

Ladies/Gentlemen: This list of questions and responses is being issued to clarify certain information 
contained in the above referenced RFP. Nothing in MHBE’s response to these questions is to be 
construed as agreement to or acceptance by the MHBE of any statement or interpretation on the part of 
the Offeror. 

 
1.  Question:  Who the incumbent is currently on this project 
 
RESPONSE: Deloitte Consulting, LLP 

2.  Question: Is the solicitation released under full and open competition on eMaryland Marketplace, 
or under a more restrictive IDIQ or schedule, such as the MHBE IDIQ? 

RESPONSE: The solicitation is released under full and open competition. 

3.  Question: Does MHBE anticipate that the resources supporting HBX will perform their services 
in MHBE offices, or at the vendor’s facility with external access to HBX? 

RESPONSE: It is not required for the vendor to perform their services at MHBE offices. However, based 
on the project needs there may be situations where the vendor is expected to perform services at the 
MHBE office locations. As stated in the RFP Section 3.12, MHBE shall provide the Contractor’s staff 
with work space during normal State business hours. 

4.  Question: Are any services in this procurement performed by the hosting vendor? 

RESPONSE: No. 

5.  Question: Are any vendors precluded from bidding on this project? 

RESPONSE: Vendors are precluded from bidding on this project if they have staff who were directly 
involved in the drafting of the solicitation.  

6.  Question: The definition of the term “Incident” in RFP Section 1.2 appears to include only 
security-related incidents. Are other non-security related incidents in scope of the Contractor 
Requirements mentioned in RFP Section 3.2.1, ID# 3.2.1.9 Incident Management? 

 



 
 
RESPONSE: Yes.  Non-security related incidents are in the scope of the RFP and should also follow the 
Incident Management process. 
 
7.  Question: RFP Section 3.1 states: “The System overview is provided in RFP Appendix A.” 
Appendix A does not include a System overview diagram/description. Will MHBE please provide the 
overview? 

 
RESPONSE:  Yes, we can provide a description of the system overview. The architecture diagram can’t 
be provided due to security reasons. The RFP shall be amended to incorporate changes to Appendix A.  
 
8.  Question: It is not clear whether request fulfillment (e.g., mass changes, retroactive enrollments, 
auto renewals, and so forth) is included in the scope of work. This is typically part of HBX IT operations 
support work. Does MHBE anticipate including request fulfillment activities as part of the contract 
resulting from this procurement? 

 
RESPONSE:  No. The MHBE is not requesting fulfillment activities as part of this RFP. 
 
9.  Question: There appears to be conflict in the Transition-In plan submission schedule. Which one 
of the following dates is correct? On RFP page 39 - “The Contractor shall submit the final Transition-In 
plan within 10 calendar days following the issuance of the NTP.” On RFP page 41 – “Contractor submits 
Transition Plan NTP + 15 calendar days.” 

 
RESPONSE: The sentence on the page 39 of the RFP “The Contractor shall submit the final Transition-
In plan within 10 calendar days following the issuance of the NTP.” should state “The Contractor shall 
submit the final Transition-In plan within 15 calendar days following the issuance of the NTP.” The RFP 
shall be amended to incorporate this change.  

 
10.  Question: Does the current MBHE System meet all the service level requirements listed in this 
section? If not, please provide details regarding the specific service level requirements that are not 
currently met. 
 
RESPONSE:  The HBX system meets the Service Level Objectives (SLO) under the categories of 
system availability, files processing, transaction performance etc.  However, the SLAs defined in this RFP 
may not be directly comparable to the current SLOs. 
 
11.  Question: Does the percent of Liquidated Damages apply to the individual tasks listed in 
Attachment F OR to the total evaluated proposed monthly price? 
 
RESPONSE: The percent of Liquidated Damages applies to the individual tasks as listed on the RFP 
Section 3.5.4. 
 



 
 
12.  Question: The RFP requires vendors to provide a Firm Fixed Price.  Will MHBE please provide 
the existing volume of operation support work across all the items listed in RFP Section 3.2 Scope of 
Work? To include: 

- Number of Incident Influx/month 
- Backlog of Problem/RCA Tickets 
- Number of Request Fulfillment/month 
- Number of existing Production workaround 

 
RESPONSE:  MHBE cannot provide existing volume of operation support work across all the items 
listed in RFP Section 3.2 Scope of Work.  However, the following information is provided as requested. 
 

1. Number of Incident Influx/month:  
There were 26 Severity Level 1 and 47 Severity Level 2 incidents for the 2015 Calendar year 

 
     2.   Backlog of Problem/RCA Tickets: 

None. 
 
     3.   Number of Request Fulfillment/month: 
           Not applicable to the scope of services of this RFP.  
 
     4.  Number of existing Production workaround: 

Standard operating procedures will be adopted in the event of any disruption to infrastructure, 
production or batch activities. 

 
13.  Question: Subsection c states that “Final procedures shall be submitted as indicated in RFP 
Section 3.5.” Please confirm that this reference should read “3.6”, which is the Section that relates to the 
Problem Escalation Procedure as opposed to 3.5, which refers to Liquidated Damages. 
 
RESPONSE: The reference should read 3.6. The RFP shall be amended to incorporate the change.  
 
14.  Question: The RFP states that “All Qualified Offerors (see Section 5.5.2.4) will be ranked…” 
There is no Section 5.5.2.4 in the RFP.  Please clarify if and how offerors will be determined to be 
“qualified offerors.” 
 
RESPONSE: Section 5.3 of the RFP should state that “All Qualified Offerors (see Section 5.4.2.4) will 
be ranked…” The RFP shall be amended to incorporate the change.  
 
15.  Question: Section 3.9.6 of the RFP requires, among other items, that the Contractor list the State 
as an additional insured on its Employee Theft Insurance Policy.  Most, if not all Contractors, will not be 
able to do so but instead, may be able to include the State as a “loss payee” on its Employee Theft 
Insurance Policy which is more in line with standard industry practices. 

In light of (a) the difficulty associated with the RFP as written, (b) the inadvertent effect of preventing 
Contractors who are otherwise technically responsive and financially responsible from meeting this RFP 



 
 
requirement and (c) the availability of an alternative that affords the State additional protection while 
conforming to an industry practice, would the State amend the RFP so that the first sentence of Section 
3.9.6 reads as follows (or other language substantially similar to the following): 

“The State shall be listed as an additional insured on the above policies with the exception of Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance, Professional Liability Insurance and Professional Liability Insurance.  For the 
Employee Theft Insurance Policy, the Contractor shall include the State as a Loss Payee.” 
 
RESPONSE:  The RFP shall be amended as such: 
 
“The State shall be listed as an additional insured on the above policies with the exception of Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance and Professional Liability Insurance.  For the Employee Theft Insurance Policy, 
the Contractor shall include the State as a Loss Payee.” 
 
 
 
 
Date Issued: January 15, 2016 
Michelle Compton 
Procurement Officer 


